
 

                        
                         CITY OF COCONUT CREEK 
             PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD MINUTES 

 
 

 
Government Center        Date:  February 14, 2018 
4800 W. Copans Road       Time:  7:00 p.m. 
Coconut Creek, Florida      

 
                                                                                          
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
The meeting was called to order by Chair Morris Chase at 7:02 p.m. 
 
 

2. PRESENT UPON ROLL CALL: 
 
 Chair Morris Chase  
 Vice Chair Doug Young 
 Steve Hall  
 Debra Voorhees  
   

Also present: Assistant City Manager/Sustainable Development Director Sheila Rose, 
Sustainable Development Deputy Director Scott Stoudenmire, Principal Planner Lizet 
Aguiar, Senior Planner Linda Whitman, Planner Natacha Josiah, City Attorney Terrill 
Pyburn, and Deputy City Clerk Marianne Bowers. 

 
 Absent: Jerry Poole 
              Ronald Honick, Alternate 
  

Deputy City Clerk Bowers informed the Board that Mr. Honick and Mr. Poole had 
contacted the City Clerk Department to send notice that they would be unable to attend 
the meeting.    
 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 

A MOTION APPROVING THE MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS PLANNING AND ZONING 
BOARD MEETING(S). (2018-0110) 
 
MOTION:   Young/Hall - To approve the Minutes of the January 10, 2018, meeting. 
 
Upon roll call, the Motion passed by a 4-0 vote.   
 
 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 

4. DISCUSSION: MAINSTREET DESIGN STANDARDS. 
 
 

Sustainable Development Deputy Director Scott Stoudenmire introduced the City staff in 
attendance and began a PowerPoint presentation.  He gave a brief history of the master 
planning effort for the MainStreet Project Area (MSPA) and the adoption of the MainStreet 



Planning and Zoning Board Minutes 
February 14, 2018 
Page 2 
 

Design Standards (MSDS). Discussion ensued regarding the approved projects in the 
MSPA. Mr. Stoudenmire commented that the MSDS had provided a valuable framework  
for project review; but since their adoption, staff had learned that amendments to the 
standards could improve implementation. He noted that staff held workshops with the City 
Commission in July and December 2017 to discuss proposed amendments to the MSDS, 
including the following criteria: 

 Implementation;  

 Permitted Uses;  

 Green Building Requirements;  

 Mix of Uses/Building Height/Density/Intensity; 

 Streetscape/Road Cross Sections; 

 Smart City Technology; and  

 Parking.  

Mr. Stoudenmire explained the approval process for projects within the Planned 
MainStreet Development District (PMDD) zoning designation.  He introduced Brenda 
Yates, representing the master developer for the Johns Family property, and commented 
that the larger, unplatted tracts of land within the MSPA require a master planning effort.  
He noted that the MSDS did not provide for such a process and discussed the benefits of 
implementing a master planning process. He stated that staff was recommending to 
incorporate a MainStreet Master Plan process into the MSDS to establish fundamental 
design criteria for each development phase. He explained that the specific site details 
would be provided for in the PMDD document and site plan. Discussion ensued.  
 
Assistant City Manager/Sustainable Development Director Sheila Rose explained the 
Regional Activity Center (RAC) land use designation and noted that the development 
entitlements are administered by the City. Discussion ensued. Ms. Rose explained that the 
City was setting the framework to invoke the zoning in progress doctrine to amend the 
MSDS. Mr. Stoudenmire went on to discuss the alternate design solution provision in the 
MSDS and stated that staff was recommending to formalize the process by requiring a 
specific finding of consistency during the rezoning public hearing process. Discussion 
ensued regarding examples of alternate design solutions. Mr. Stoudenmire discussed the 
permitted uses in the MSPA and noted that staff was recommending to remove the 
specific lists in each subdistrict and cross reference the Master Business List within the 
Land Development Code.  
 
Senior Planner Linda Whitman discussed proposed amendments to the provisions for 
green building requirements within the MSDS.  She reviewed the differences between 
several green building certification processes, including LEED, Green Globes, and the 
Florida Green Building Coalition, as well as the green building requirements contained in 
the Florida Building Code. Ms. Rose noted that the design standards did not provide for a 
specific architectural style but supported functional design features that dictate 
architectural style.  Ms. Whitman provided a cost comparison for each certification and 
noted that the certifications produced equal products related to site design standards, 
meeting the intent of the MSDS. She spoke about changes to green roof provisions in the 
standards, providing clarification for vegetated roofs and the use of high albedo materials. 
She added that staff was proposing to require the top level of all parking structures to 
include water collection systems and solar panels.  Discussion ensued. 
 

Ms. Rose reviewed the approved MainStreet RAC Intensity and Density Program and the 
MainStreet at Coconut Creek Development of Regional Impact (DRI) entitlements. She 
noted that the development review process for projects within the MSPA would focus on 



Planning and Zoning Board Minutes 
February 14, 2018 
Page 3 
 

onsite circulation because the offsite impacts and circulation were addressed during the 
DRI process. She spoke about changes to the mixed use model and stated that staff was 
proposing to provide definitions that clarify the mixed use model for the MSPA. She 
reviewed the four subdistricts in the MSPA and explained that the subdistricts provide the 
format for laying out densities and intensities. Ms. Rose went on to discuss changes to the 
mixed use ratios, boundaries, and building heights for each subdistrict. Discussion ensued 
regarding retail trends.  
 
The Board took a five minute recess, and the meeting reconvened at 8:24 p.m. 
 
Principal Planner Lizet Aguiar spoke about the streetscape guidelines for the MSPA. She 
explained that Broward County adopted the Complete Streets design guidelines in 2014, 
which focus on pedestrian compatibility with roadway design and stated that the City 
would incorporate the Complete Streets principals into the streetscape design for the 
MSPA. Discussion ensued regarding zoning in progress for the MSPA while the design 
standards were being amended.   
 
Ms. Rose announced that the City was being considered for a $1 million grant under the 
Broward Redevelopment Program for the Hillsboro Corridor Visioning project.  
 
Chair Chase commented on the vision for the MSPA and the proposed amendments to the 
MSDS. Discussion ensued regarding development of the land and anticipated timeframes. 
 
 

5.  COMMUNICATIONS AND REPORTS 
 
There were no communications or reports.  
 
 

6. ADJOURNMENT 
 

  The meeting was adjourned at 8:41 p.m.  
         Transcribed by: Marianne Bowers 
  

  
                              _____      
Leslie Wallace May, MMC    Date 
City Clerk  


